
 THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF PENNSYLVANIA

SENATE BILL

No. **1187** Session of
2013

INTRODUCED BY ARGALL, MENSCH, ERICKSON, COSTA, STACK, TEPLITZ,
RAFFERTY, SCHWANK, ALLOWAY, FONTANA, VULAKOVICH, WHITE,
GREENLEAF, BAKER, KASUNIC, DINNIMAN, BRUBAKER, TARTAGLIONE,
SCARNATI, SOLOBAY, BROWNE AND BREWSTER, NOVEMBER 20, 2013

AS REPORTED FROM COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION, HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES, AS AMENDED, JUNE 18, 2014

AN ACT

1 Amending Title 75 (Vehicles) of the Pennsylvania Consolidated
2 Statutes, in registration of vehicles, ~~providing for~~ <--
3 ~~Pennsylvania hunting heritage plates and, for special plates~~
4 ~~for recipients of Combat Infantry Badge; further providing~~
5 ~~for special plates for individuals in the service of the~~
6 ~~United States Merchant Marine; FURTHER PROVIDING FOR PERIOD~~ <--
7 OF REGISTRATION, FOR PERSON WITH DISABILITY PLATE AND
8 PLACARD, FOR ANTIQUE, CLASSIC AND COLLECTIBLE PLATES, FOR
9 SPECIAL PLATES FOR RECIPIENTS OF PURPLE HEART, FOR SPECIAL
10 PLATES FOR PEARL HARBOR SURVIVORS, FOR SPECIAL PLATES FOR
11 VETERANS OF KOREAN WAR, FOR SPECIAL PLATES FOR RECIPIENTS OF
12 KOREAN DEFENSE SERVICE MEDAL, FOR SPECIAL PLATES FOR VETERANS
13 OF PERSIAN GULF WAR, FOR WILD RESOURCE CONSERVATION PLATE,
14 FOR APPALACHIAN TRAIL ORGANIZATION REGISTRATION PLATES AND
15 FOR PRESERVE OUR HERITAGE REGISTRATION PLATE, PROVIDING FOR
16 PENNSYLVANIA MONUMENTS REGISTRATION PLATE, FURTHER PROVIDING
17 FOR ZOOLOGICAL PLATE, PROVIDING FOR PENNSYLVANIA HUNTING
18 HERITAGE REGISTRATION PLATES, FURTHER PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL
19 PLATES FOR RECIPIENTS OF EXPEDITIONARY FORCES MEDAL, FOR
20 SPECIAL PLATES FOR WORLD WAR II VETERANS, FOR SPECIAL PLATES
21 FOR INDIVIDUALS IN THE SERVICE OF THE UNITED STATES MERCHANT
22 MARINE, FOR SPECIAL PLATES FOR STEELWORKERS, FOR SPECIAL
23 PLATES FOR VETERANS OF VIETNAM CONFLICT, FOR OPERATION IRAQI
24 FREEDOM VETERANS PLATE, FOR OPERATION ENDURING FREEDOM
25 VETERANS PLATE, FOR SPECIAL PLATES FOR VETERANS, FOR GOLD
26 STAR FAMILY PLATE, FOR SPECIAL PLATES FOR UNITED STATES
27 MILITARY AIRBORNE UNITS, AND PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL PLATES FOR
28 RECIPIENTS OF COMBAT INFANTRY BADGE AND FOR SPECIAL "IN GOD
29 WE TRUST" PLATES; and, in fees, further providing for
30 ~~payments to special funds~~ PERSONAL REGISTRATION PLATES. <--

1 The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
2 hereby enacts as follows:

3 ~~Section 1. Title 75 of the Pennsylvania Consolidated~~ <--
4 ~~Statutes is amended by adding a section to read:~~

5 ~~§ 1355.1. Pennsylvania hunting heritage plate.~~

6 ~~The department, in consultation with the Pennsylvania Game~~
7 ~~Commission, shall design a hunting heritage plate. Upon~~
8 ~~application of any person, accompanied by a fee of \$35 which~~
9 ~~shall be in addition to the annual registration fee, the~~
10 ~~department shall issue the plate for a passenger car, motor~~
11 ~~home, trailer or truck with a registered gross weight of not~~
12 ~~more than 14,000 pounds. Fifteen dollars of the fee shall be~~
13 ~~deposited into the Pennsylvania Hunting Heritage Fund and~~
14 ~~expended as provided in section 1905(d) (relating to payments to~~
15 ~~special funds).~~

16 SECTION 1. SECTIONS 1307(A.1), 1338(A), 1340(A.1)(2), <--
17 1342(A), (C) AND (D), 1346, 1348, 1350, 1350.1, 1351 AND 1352
18 OF TITLE 75 OF THE PENNSYLVANIA CONSOLIDATED STATUTES ARE
19 AMENDED TO READ:

20 § 1307. PERIOD OF REGISTRATION.

21 * * *

22 (A.1) SEASONAL REGISTRATION.--UPON APPLICATION ON A FORM
23 PRESCRIBED BY THE DEPARTMENT, THE OWNER OR LESSEE OF A PASSENGER
24 CAR, RECREATIONAL MOTOR VEHICLE, MOTORCYCLE, TRUCK OR FARM
25 VEHICLE WHICH DOES NOT HAVE A GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT RATING OF
26 MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS MAY REGISTER THE VEHICLE WITH
27 THE DEPARTMENT FOR A PERIOD OF SUCCESSIVE MONTHS OF LESS THAN
28 ONE YEAR. THE APPLICANT SHALL SPECIFY THE PERIOD OF MONTHS
29 DURING WHICH THE VEHICLE SHALL BE REGISTERED. EXCEPT WHEN THE
30 DEPARTMENT INITIALLY CONVERTS A CURRENTLY VALID ANNUAL

1 REGISTRATION TO A SEASONAL REGISTRATION, THE ANNUAL FEE
2 PRESCRIBED FOR THE VEHICLE BY CHAPTER 19 (RELATING TO FEES)
3 SHALL BE PAID IN FULL BY THE APPLICANT REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER
4 OF MONTHS CHOSEN FOR REGISTRATION BY THE APPLICANT. UPON RECEIPT
5 OF THE APPROPRIATE FEE AND THE PROPERLY COMPLETED FORM,
6 INCLUDING ALL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THIS CHAPTER, THE
7 DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE A SEASONAL REGISTRATION THAT SHALL EXPIRE
8 ON THE LAST DAY OF THE EXPIRATION MONTH CHOSEN BY THE
9 REGISTRANT. NO INSURER OF A VEHICLE BELONGING TO ANY OWNER OR
10 LESSEE WHO OBTAINS A SEASONAL REGISTRATION AND WHO APPLIES FOR
11 OR RECEIVES A REDUCED AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE PREMIUM ON ACCOUNT
12 THEREOF SHALL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE ANY CONTRACTUAL COVERAGE,
13 WHETHER IN THE FORM OF THE PROVISION OF A DEFENSE OR THE PAYMENT
14 OF FIRST-PARTY OR THIRD-PARTY BENEFITS OR OTHERWISE, TO THE
15 OWNER OR LESSEE IN CONNECTION WITH ANY EVENT OCCURRING DURING
16 THAT PART OF THE YEAR IN WHICH THE VEHICLE IS NOT REGISTERED;
17 AND SUCH OWNER OR LESSEE SHALL BE TREATED FOR ALL PURPOSES,
18 INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ASCERTAINING RIGHTS TO STACK
19 COVERAGES AND TO UNINSURED AND UNDERINSURED MOTORIST COVERAGE,
20 AS A PERSON WHO DOES NOT OWN THAT VEHICLE AND HAS NO DUTY TO
21 CARRY FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ON IT FOR THAT PART OF THE YEAR.

22 * * *

23 § 1338. PERSON WITH DISABILITY PLATE AND PLACARD.

24 (A) PERSON WITH DISABILITY PLATE.--ON THE APPLICATION OF ANY
25 PERSON WHO:

- 26 (1) IS BLIND;
- 27 (2) DOES NOT HAVE FULL USE OF AN ARM OR BOTH ARMS;
- 28 (3) CANNOT WALK 200 FEET WITHOUT STOPPING TO REST;
- 29 (4) CANNOT WALK WITHOUT THE USE OF, OR ASSISTANCE FROM,
30 A BRACE, CANE, CRUTCH, ANOTHER PERSON, PROSTHETIC DEVICE,

1 WHEELCHAIR OR OTHER ASSISTIVE DEVICE;

2 (5) IS RESTRICTED BY LUNG DISEASE TO SUCH AN EXTENT THAT
3 THE PERSON'S FORCED (RESPIRATORY) EXPIRATORY VOLUME FOR ONE
4 SECOND, WHEN MEASURED BY SPIROMETRY, IS LESS THAN ONE LITER
5 OR THE ARTERIAL OXYGEN TENSION IS LESS THAN 60 MM/HG ON ROOM
6 AIR AT REST;

7 (6) USES PORTABLE OXYGEN;

8 (7) HAS A CARDIAC CONDITION TO THE EXTENT THAT THE
9 PERSON'S FUNCTIONAL LIMITATIONS ARE CLASSIFIED IN SEVERITY AS
10 CLASS III OR CLASS IV ACCORDING TO THE STANDARDS SET BY THE
11 AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION;

12 (8) IS SEVERELY LIMITED IN HIS OR HER ABILITY TO WALK
13 DUE TO AN ARTHRITIC, NEUROLOGICAL OR ORTHOPEDIC CONDITION; OR

14 (9) IS A PERSON IN LOCO PARENTIS OF A PERSON SPECIFIED
15 IN PARAGRAPH (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7) OR (8);

16 THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
17 FOR ONE PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT
18 OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS, DESIGNATING THE
19 VEHICLE SO LICENSED AS BEING USED BY A PERSON WITH A
20 DISABILITY. SPECIAL PLATES FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES MAY
21 ALSO BE ISSUED FOR VEHICLES OPERATED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE USE
22 AND BENEFIT OF PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. IN THE CASE OF A
23 MOTORCYCLE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE A DECAL CONTAINING THE
24 INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL FOR ACCESS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
25 FOR DISPLAY ON THE REGISTRATION PLATE.

26 * * *

27 § 1340. ANTIQUE, CLASSIC AND COLLECTIBLE PLATES.

28 * * *

29 (A.1) VINTAGE REGISTRATION PLATES.--IN LIEU OF A SPECIAL
30 PLATE ISSUED UNDER SUBSECTION (A), THE OWNER OF AN ANTIQUE OR

1 CLASSIC MOTOR VEHICLE MAY REQUEST PERMISSION FROM THE DEPARTMENT
2 TO DISPLAY A VINTAGE REGISTRATION PLATE FROM THE MODEL YEAR OF
3 THE MOTOR VEHICLE. THE VINTAGE REGISTRATION PLATE SHALL BE:

4 * * *

5 (2) A PENNSYLVANIA REGISTRATION PLATE ISSUED BETWEEN THE
6 YEARS 1906 AND [1975] 1976.

7 * * *

8 § 1342. VETERAN PLATES AND PLACARD.

9 (A) SEVERELY DISABLED VETERAN PLATE.--ON THE APPLICATION OF
10 A VETERAN WHOSE SERVICE-CONNECTED DISABILITY IS CERTIFIED AT
11 100% BY THE SERVICE UNIT OF THE ARMED FORCES IN WHICH THE
12 VETERAN SERVED OR BY THE UNITED STATES VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION
13 OR WHO HAS A SERVICE-CONNECTED DISABILITY OF THE TYPE ENUMERATED
14 IN SECTION 1338 (RELATING TO PERSON WITH DISABILITY PLATE AND
15 PLACARD), THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE A SPECIAL REGISTRATION
16 PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE AS BELONGING TO A SEVERELY
17 DISABLED VETERAN. THE REGISTRATION PLATE SHALL HAVE A WHITE
18 BACKGROUND, SHALL HAVE BLUE NUMBERS OR LETTERS AS THE DEPARTMENT
19 MAY DETERMINE, SHALL HAVE THE WORDS "DISABLED VETERAN" IN AT
20 LEAST TEN-POINT BOLD TYPE INSCRIBED IN RED AT THE BOTTOM OF THE
21 PLATE AND SHALL INCLUDE THE INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL FOR ACCESS FOR
22 PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. [ONLY ONE] A SPECIAL REGISTRATION
23 PLATE [SHALL BE] ISSUED TO A VETERAN UNDER THIS SECTION[. IT]
24 MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED
25 GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS. IN THE
26 CASE OF A MOTORCYCLE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE A DECAL
27 CONTAINING THE INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL FOR ACCESS FOR PERSONS WITH
28 DISABILITIES AND THE WORDS "DISABLED VETERAN" FOR DISPLAY ON THE
29 REGISTRATION PLATE.

30 * * *

1 (C) DISABLED VETERAN PLATES.--ON THE APPLICATION OF ANY
2 VETERAN HAVING A DISABILITY CERTIFIED BY THE SERVICE UNIT OF THE
3 ARMED FORCES IN WHICH THE VETERAN SERVED OR BY THE UNITED STATES
4 VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION AS SERVICE-CONNECTED, THE DEPARTMENT
5 SHALL ISSUE A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE
6 AS BELONGING TO A DISABLED VETERAN. THE REGISTRATION PLATE SHALL
7 HAVE A WHITE BACKGROUND, SHALL HAVE NUMBERS OR LETTERS AS THE
8 DEPARTMENT MAY DETERMINE AND SHALL HAVE THE WORDS "DISABLED
9 VETERAN" IN AT LEAST TEN-POINT BOLD TYPE INSCRIBED AT THE BOTTOM
10 OF THE PLATE. [ONLY ONE] A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE [SHALL BE]
11 ISSUED TO A VETERAN UNDER THIS SECTION[. IT] MAY BE USED ONLY ON
12 A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT
13 MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

14 (D) PRISONER OF WAR PLATE.--ON THE APPLICATION OF AN EX-
15 PRISONER OF WAR WHOSE IMPRISONMENT WHILE IN THE SERVICE OF THE
16 ARMED FORCES OF THE UNITED STATES IS CERTIFIED BY THE
17 APPROPRIATE BRANCH OF THE ARMED FORCES, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL
18 ISSUE A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE AS
19 BELONGING TO AN EX-PRISONER OF WAR. THE REGISTRATION PLATE SHALL
20 CONTAIN THE LETTERS "POW" AND SUCH OTHER NUMBERS OR LETTERS AS
21 THE DEPARTMENT MAY DETERMINE AND SHALL HAVE THE WORDS "PRISONER
22 OF WAR" IN AT LEAST TEN-POINT BOLD TYPE INSCRIBED AT THE BOTTOM
23 OF THE PLATE. [ONLY ONE] A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE [SHALL BE]
24 ISSUED TO AN EX-PRISONER OF WAR UNDER THIS SUBSECTION[. THE
25 SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE] MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR
26 OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN
27 [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

28 * * *

29 § 1346. SPECIAL PLATES FOR RECIPIENTS OF PURPLE HEART.

30 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A RECIPIENT OF THE

1 PURPLE HEART, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO SUCH PERSON A
2 SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO LICENSED
3 AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO IS A RECIPIENT OF THE PURPLE HEART.
4 A SEVERELY DISABLED VETERAN, AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1342(A)
5 (RELATING TO VETERAN PLATES AND PLACARD), WHO IS QUALIFIED TO
6 RECEIVE A PLATE UNDER THIS SECTION MAY ALSO ELECT TO RECEIVE A
7 PLACARD UNDER SECTION 1342(B). THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
8 MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED
9 GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

10 § 1348. SPECIAL PLATES FOR PEARL HARBOR SURVIVORS.

11 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A SURVIVOR OF PEARL
12 HARBOR, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION
13 TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH DOCUMENTATION AS THE
14 DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO SUCH
15 PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO
16 LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO IS A SURVIVOR OF PEARL
17 HARBOR. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A
18 PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT
19 MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

20 § 1350. SPECIAL PLATES FOR VETERANS OF KOREAN WAR.

21 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF THE KOREAN
22 WAR, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20, WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO
23 THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE, AND BY SUCH DOCUMENTATION AS THE
24 DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO THE
25 PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO
26 LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF THE KOREAN
27 WAR. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A
28 PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT
29 MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

30 § 1350.1. SPECIAL PLATES FOR RECIPIENTS OF KOREAN DEFENSE

1 SERVICE MEDAL.

2 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A RECIPIENT OF THE
3 KOREAN DEFENSE SERVICE MEDAL, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH
4 SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH
5 DOCUMENTATION AS THE DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT
6 SHALL ISSUE TO THE PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
7 DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO
8 IS A RECIPIENT OF THE KOREAN DEFENSE SERVICE MEDAL. THE
9 DEPARTMENT SHALL DESIGN AND PRODUCE THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION
10 PLATE. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A
11 PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT
12 MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

13 § 1351. SPECIAL PLATES FOR VETERANS OF PERSIAN GULF WAR.

14 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF THE
15 PERSIAN GULF WAR, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20, WHICH SHALL BE IN
16 ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE, AND BY SUCH
17 DOCUMENTATION AS THE DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT
18 SHALL ISSUE TO THE PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
19 DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO
20 IS A VETERAN OF THE PERSIAN GULF WAR. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION
21 PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A
22 REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

23 § 1352. WILD RESOURCE CONSERVATION PLATE.

24 THE DEPARTMENT, IN CONSULTATION WITH THE WILD RESOURCE
25 CONSERVATION BOARD, SHALL DESIGN A SPECIAL WILD RESOURCE
26 CONSERVATION REGISTRATION PLATE. UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON,
27 ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$35 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE
28 ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE THE PLATE
29 FOR A PASSENGER CAR, MOTOR HOME, TRAILER OR TRUCK WITH A
30 REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

1 THE WILD RESOURCE CONSERVATION FUND SHALL RECEIVE \$15 OF EACH
2 ADDITIONAL FEE FOR THIS PLATE.

3 SECTION 2. SECTION 1352.1(A) OF TITLE 75, AMENDED MARCH 19,
4 2014 (P.L.361, NO.23), IS AMENDED TO READ:

5 § 1352.1. APPALACHIAN TRAIL ORGANIZATION REGISTRATION PLATES.

6 (A) GENERAL RULE.--THE DEPARTMENT, IN CONSULTATION WITH THE
7 APPALACHIAN TRAIL CONSERVANCY, SHALL DESIGN A SPECIAL
8 APPALACHIAN TRAIL ORGANIZATION REGISTRATION PLATE. THE PLATE, AT
9 A MINIMUM, SHALL CONTAIN THE IMAGE OF A HIKER AND THE
10 APPALACHIAN TRAIL CONSERVANCY LOGO AND DISTINCTIVE COLORING. THE
11 APPALACHIAN TRAIL CONSERVANCY MAY CHARGE A FEE FOR THE
12 AUTHORIZATION TO REQUEST THE REGISTRATION PLATE. UPON REQUEST BY
13 THE APPLICANT, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE THE PLATE FOR A
14 PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT
15 MORE THAN 14,000 POUNDS OR A MOTOR HOME. THE FEE PROVIDED UNDER
16 SECTION [1931] 1931(B) (RELATING TO PERSONAL AND ORGANIZATION
17 REGISTRATION PLATES) SHALL APPLY.

18 * * *

19 SECTION 3. SECTION 1353 OF TITLE 75, AMENDED NOVEMBER 25,
20 2013 (P.L.974, NO.89), IS AMENDED TO READ:

21 § 1353. PRESERVE OUR HERITAGE REGISTRATION PLATE.

22 THE DEPARTMENT, IN CONSULTATION WITH THE PENNSYLVANIA
23 HISTORICAL AND MUSEUM COMMISSION, SHALL DESIGN A SPECIAL
24 PRESERVE OUR HERITAGE REGISTRATION PLATE. UPON RECEIPT OF AN
25 APPLICATION, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$54 WHICH SHALL BE IN
26 ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL
27 ISSUE THE PLATE FOR A PASSENGER CAR, MOTOR HOME, TRAILER OR
28 TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000]
29 14,000 POUNDS. THE HISTORICAL PRESERVATION FUND SHALL RECEIVE
30 \$23 OF EACH ADDITIONAL FEE FOR THIS PLATE.

1 SECTION 4. TITLE 75 IS AMENDED BY ADDING A SECTION TO READ:

2 § 1353.1. PENNSYLVANIA MONUMENTS REGISTRATION PLATE.

3 (A) DESIGN.--THE DEPARTMENT SHALL DESIGN A PENNSYLVANIA
4 MONUMENTS REGISTRATION PLATE WHICH SHALL HAVE A REPLICA OF THE
5 PENNSYLVANIA MEMORIAL MONUMENT AT THE GETTYSBURG NATIONAL
6 MILITARY PARK AND SHALL DISPLAY THE WORDS "GETTYSBURG 1863."

7 (B) APPLICATION.--UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON,
8 ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$54 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE
9 ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE THE
10 REGISTRATION PLATE UNDER SUBSECTION (A) FOR A PASSENGER CAR,
11 MOTOR HOME, TRAILER OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF
12 NOT MORE THAN 14,000 POUNDS.

13 (C) PROCEEDS.--THE VETERANS' TRUST FUND ESTABLISHED UNDER 51
14 PA.C.S. § 1721(C) (RELATING TO VETERANS' TRUST FUND) SHALL
15 RECEIVE \$23 OF THE FEE PAID BY THE APPLICANT FOR THE
16 REGISTRATION PLATE UNDER SUBSECTION (A).

17 (D) USE OF PROCEEDS.--PROCEEDS UNDER SUBSECTION (C) SHALL BE
18 USED EXCLUSIVELY TO PROVIDE GRANTS TO NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS
19 FOR THE CLEANING, REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF PENNSYLVANIA
20 MONUMENTS BY THE GETTYSBURG NATIONAL MILITARY PARK. A GRANT
21 UNDER THIS SUBSECTION MAY NOT BE USED TO PAY FOR THE COST OF
22 CLEANING, REPAIR OR RESTORATION OF THE GROUNDS SURROUNDING A
23 PENNSYLVANIA MONUMENT.

24 SECTION 5. SECTION 1355 OF TITLE 75 IS AMENDED TO READ:

25 § 1355. ZOOLOGICAL PLATE.

26 THE DEPARTMENT, IN CONSULTATION WITH THE PENNSYLVANIA
27 ZOOLOGICAL COUNCIL, SHALL DESIGN A SPECIAL ZOOLOGICAL
28 REGISTRATION PLATE. UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON, ACCOMPANIED
29 BY A FEE OF \$54 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL
30 REGISTRATION FEE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE THE PLATE FOR A

1 PASSENGER CAR, MOTOR HOME, TRAILER OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED
2 GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS. THE
3 ZOOLOGICAL ENHANCEMENT FUND SHALL RECEIVE \$23 OF THE FEE PAID BY
4 THE APPLICANT FOR THE PLATE.

5 SECTION 6. TITLE 75 IS AMENDED BY ADDING A SECTION TO READ:
6 § 1355.1. PENNSYLVANIA HUNTING HERITAGE REGISTRATION PLATES.

7 (A) GENERAL RULE.--THE DEPARTMENT, IN CONSULTATION WITH THE
8 PENNSYLVANIA GAME COMMISSION, SHALL DESIGN A SPECIAL
9 PENNSYLVANIA HUNTING HERITAGE REGISTRATION PLATE. THE
10 PENNSYLVANIA GAME COMMISSION SHALL CHARGE A FEE FOR THE
11 AUTHORIZATION TO REQUEST THE REGISTRATION PLATE. UPON REQUEST BY
12 THE APPLICANT, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE THE PLATE FOR A
13 PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT
14 MORE THAN 14,000 POUNDS OR A MOTOR HOME. THE FEE PROVIDED UNDER
15 SECTION 1931(B) (RELATING TO PERSONAL AND ORGANIZATION
16 REGISTRATION PLATES) SHALL APPLY.

17 (B) PROCEEDS.--PROCEEDS RECEIVED BY THE PENNSYLVANIA GAME
18 COMMISSION UNDER THIS SECTION ARE TO BE USED AS FOLLOWS:

19 (1) THIRTY-THREE PERCENT SHALL BE ALLOCATED TO NONPROFIT
20 ORGANIZATIONS THAT COORDINATE THE PROCESSING AND DISTRIBUTION
21 OF DONATED WILD GAME FROM HUNTERS AND MUNICIPAL HERD
22 REDUCTION SOURCES TO PENNSYLVANIA RESIDENTS THROUGH A
23 DISTRIBUTION NETWORK OF FOOD BANKS IN THIS COMMONWEALTH.

24 (2) THIRTY-THREE PERCENT SHALL BE ALLOCATED TO NONPROFIT
25 ORGANIZATIONS TO PROMOTE SPORT HUNTING OR THE CONSERVATION
26 AND ENHANCEMENT OF GAME SPECIES IN THIS COMMONWEALTH.

27 (3) THIRTY-FOUR PERCENT SHALL BE ALLOCATED FOR THE
28 PROMOTION OF YOUTH HUNTING OPPORTUNITIES IN THIS
29 COMMONWEALTH.

30 (C) LIMITATION.--A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION MAY NOT USE

1 FUNDING UNDER THIS SECTION FOR SALARIES OR ADMINISTRATIVE
2 EXPENSES.

3 (D) EXPENDITURES.--ESTIMATES OF AMOUNTS TO BE EXPENDED UNDER
4 THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE GOVERNOR BY THE
5 PENNSYLVANIA GAME COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL BY THE GOVERNOR.

6 ~~Section 2. Section 1357.1 of Title 75 is amended to read:~~ <--

7 SECTION 7. SECTIONS 1356, 1357, 1357.1, 1359(A), 1360, 1362, <--
8 1363, 1364, 1365(A) AND 1366.1 OF TITLE 75 ARE AMENDED TO READ:

9 § 1356. SPECIAL PLATES FOR RECIPIENTS OF EXPEDITIONARY FORCES
10 MEDAL.

11 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A RECIPIENT OF THE
12 EXPEDITIONARY FORCES MEDAL, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH
13 SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH
14 DOCUMENTATION AS THE DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT
15 SHALL ISSUE TO SUCH PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
16 DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO REGISTERED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON
17 WHO IS A RECIPIENT OF THE EXPEDITIONARY FORCES MEDAL. THE
18 SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR
19 OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN
20 [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

21 § 1357. SPECIAL PLATES FOR WORLD WAR II VETERANS.

22 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF WORLD WAR
23 II, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO
24 THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH DOCUMENTATION AS THE
25 DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO SUCH
26 PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE CARRYING THE SYMBOL OF A
27 RUPTURED DUCK DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO REGISTERED AS BELONGING
28 TO A PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF WORLD WAR II. THE SPECIAL
29 REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK
30 WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000

1 POUNDS.

2 § 1357.1. Special plates for individuals in the service of the
3 United States Merchant Marine.

4 Upon application of any person who was in the service of the
5 United States Merchant Marine during World War II, the Korean
6 War, the Vietnam Conflict or any of the Gulf Wars, including
7 Operation Desert Storm, Operation Iraqi Freedom and Operation
8 Desert Shield, accompanied by a fee of \$20 which shall be in
9 addition to the annual registration fee and by such
10 documentation as the department shall require, the department
11 shall issue to the person a special registration plate
12 designating the vehicle so licensed as belonging to a person who
13 was in the service of the United States Merchant Marine during
14 World War II, the Korean War, the Vietnam Conflict or any of the
15 Gulf Wars, including Operation Desert Storm, Operation Iraqi
16 Freedom and Operation Desert Shield. The special registration
17 plate may be used only on a passenger car or truck with a
18 registered gross weight of not more than 14,000 pounds.

19 § 1359. SPECIAL PLATES FOR STEELWORKERS. <--

20 (A) GENERAL RULE.--UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A
21 STEELWORKER, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH SHALL BE IN
22 ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH
23 DOCUMENTATION AS THE DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT
24 SHALL ISSUE TO SUCH PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
25 DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO
26 IS A STEELWORKER. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED
27 ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR A TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS
28 WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS. THE PLATE SHALL
29 BEAR THE LIKENESS OF THE OFFICIAL EMBLEM OF THE AMERICAN IRON
30 AND STEEL INSTITUTE.

1 * * *

2 § 1360. SPECIAL PLATES FOR VETERANS OF VIETNAM CONFLICT.

3 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF THE
4 VIETNAM CONFLICT AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED FOR THE AWARDING OF THE
5 VIETNAM SERVICE MEDAL, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 IN ADDITION
6 TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH DOCUMENTATION AS THE
7 DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO THE
8 PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO
9 LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF THE
10 VIETNAM CONFLICT. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED
11 ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT
12 OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

13 § 1362. OPERATION IRAQI FREEDOM VETERANS PLATE.

14 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF THE
15 LIBERATION OR OCCUPATION OF IRAQ, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20
16 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY
17 DOCUMENTATION AS THE DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT
18 SHALL ISSUE TO THE PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
19 DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO
20 IS A VETERAN OF OPERATION IRAQI FREEDOM. THE SPECIAL
21 REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK
22 WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000
23 POUNDS.

24 § 1363. OPERATION ENDURING FREEDOM VETERANS PLATE.

25 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF THE
26 LIBERATION OR OCCUPATION OF AFGHANISTAN, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF
27 \$20 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE
28 AND BY DOCUMENTATION AS THE DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE
29 DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO THE PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION
30 PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A

1 PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF OPERATION ENDURING FREEDOM. THE
2 SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR
3 OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN
4 [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

5 § 1364. SPECIAL PLATES FOR VETERANS.

6 (A) HONORABLY DISCHARGED VETERANS.--UPON APPLICATION OF ANY
7 PERSON WHO IS AN HONORABLY DISCHARGED VETERAN OF THE ARMED
8 FORCES OF THE UNITED STATES OR A RESERVE COMPONENT OF THE ARMED
9 FORCES AS DEFINED IN 51 PA.C.S. § 7301 (RELATING TO
10 DEFINITIONS), ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH SHALL BE IN
11 ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH
12 DOCUMENTATION AS THE DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT
13 SHALL ISSUE TO THE PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE
14 DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO IS A
15 VETERAN OF THE ARMED FORCES OF THE UNITED STATES. THE SPECIAL
16 REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK
17 WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000
18 POUNDS.

19 (B) HONORING OUR VETERANS.--UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON,
20 ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$35, WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE
21 ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH DOCUMENTATION AS THE
22 DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO THE
23 PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE AS
24 BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO IS HONORING VETERANS OF THE ARMED
25 FORCES OF THE UNITED STATES. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY
26 BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS
27 WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS. THE VETERANS'
28 TRUST FUND SHALL RECEIVE \$15 OF THE FEE PAID BY THE APPLICANT
29 FOR THE PLATE.

30 § 1365. GOLD STAR FAMILY PLATE.

1 (A) GENERAL RULE.--UPON APPLICATION OF A FAMILY MEMBER OF A
2 PERSON WHO WAS KILLED WHILE SERVING ON ACTIVE DUTY IN THE
3 MILITARY, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION
4 TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH DOCUMENTATION AS THE
5 DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO THE
6 FAMILY MEMBER A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE
7 VEHICLE SO LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A FAMILY MEMBER OF A PERSON
8 WHO WAS KILLED WHILE SERVING ON ACTIVE DUTY IN THE MILITARY. THE
9 DEPARTMENT SHALL DESIGN AND PRODUCE THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION
10 PLATE CARRYING THE SERVICE FLAG GOLD STAR RIMMED WITH BLUE WHICH
11 REPRESENTS SACRIFICE TO THE CAUSE OF LIBERTY AND FREEDOM. THE
12 WORDS "GOLD STAR FAMILY" SHALL BE CLEARLY DISPLAYED ALONG THE
13 BOTTOM OF THE PLATE. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED
14 ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT
15 OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000 POUNDS.

16 * * *

17 § 1366.1. SPECIAL PLATES FOR UNITED STATES MILITARY AIRBORNE
18 UNITS.

19 (A) GENERAL RULE.--UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON WHO IS A
20 VETERAN OF OR A MEMBER OF A UNITED STATES MILITARY AIRBORNE
21 UNIT, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO
22 THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE AND BY SUCH DOCUMENTATION AS THE
23 DEPARTMENT SHALL REQUIRE, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO THE
24 PERSON A SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE DESIGNATING THE VEHICLE SO
25 LICENSED AS BELONGING TO A PERSON WHO IS A VETERAN OF OR A
26 MEMBER OF A UNITED STATES MILITARY AIRBORNE UNIT. THE SPECIAL
27 REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK
28 WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT OF NOT MORE THAN [10,000] 14,000
29 POUNDS. THE DEPARTMENT SHALL DESIGN AND PRODUCE THE SPECIAL
30 REGISTRATION PLATE TO DISPLAY A SET OF JUMP WINGS AND GLIDER

1 WINGS.

2 * * *

3 Section ~~3~~ 8. Title 75 is amended by adding a ~~section~~ <--

4 SECTIONS to read: <--

5 § 1369.1. Special plates for recipients of Combat Infantry
6 Badge.

7 Upon application of any person who is a recipient of the
8 Combat Infantry Badge, accompanied by a fee of \$20 which shall
9 be in addition to the annual registration fee and by such
10 documentation as the department shall require, the department
11 shall issue to the person a special registration plate
12 designating the vehicle so licensed as belonging to a person who
13 is a recipient of the Combat Infantry Badge. The special
14 registration plate may be used only on a passenger car or truck
15 with a registered gross weight of not more than 14,000 pounds.

16 § 1369.2. SPECIAL "IN GOD WE TRUST" PLATES. <--

17 UPON APPLICATION OF ANY PERSON, ACCOMPANIED BY A FEE OF \$20
18 WHICH SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE, THE
19 DEPARTMENT SHALL ISSUE TO THE PERSON A SPECIAL "IN GOD WE TRUST"
20 REGISTRATION PLATE. THE SPECIAL REGISTRATION PLATE MAY BE USED
21 ONLY ON A PASSENGER CAR OR TRUCK WITH A REGISTERED GROSS WEIGHT
22 OF NOT MORE THAN 14,000 POUNDS.

23 ~~Section 4. Section 1905 of Title 75 is amended by adding a~~ <--
24 ~~subsection to read:~~

25 ~~§ 1905. Payments to special funds.~~

26 ~~* * *~~

27 ~~(d) Pennsylvania Hunting Heritage Fund. Fifteen dollars of~~
28 ~~each fee received under section 1355.1 (relating to Pennsylvania~~
29 ~~hunting heritage plate) shall be credited to the Pennsylvania~~
30 ~~Hunting Heritage Fund, established as follows:~~

~~(1) There is hereby established a special account in the State Treasury which shall be known as the Pennsylvania Hunting Heritage Fund. The purpose of the Pennsylvania Hunting Heritage Fund is to provide funding to nonprofit organizations as defined under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (Public Law 99 514, 26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3)) that coordinate the processing and distribution of donated wild game from hunters and municipal herd reduction sources to Pennsylvania residents through a distribution network of food banks in this Commonwealth, provided that 50% of the money in the special account shall be allocated to nonprofit organizations established, prior to January 1, 2014, to conserve all birds and mammals of this Commonwealth and the ecosystems in which they live.~~

~~(2) All moneys in the Pennsylvania Hunting Heritage Fund are hereby annually appropriated to the Pennsylvania Game Commission and may be expended for the purposes authorized under this subsection.~~

~~(3) Estimates of amounts to be expended under this subsection shall be submitted to the Governor by the Pennsylvania Game Commission for his approval.~~

~~(4) The State Treasurer shall not honor any requisition for expenditures by the Pennsylvania Game Commission in excess of estimates approved by the Governor or in excess of the amount available for the purposes for which the requisition was made, whichever is the lesser amount.~~

SECTION 9. SECTION 1931 OF TITLE 75, AMENDED NOVEMBER 25, 2013 (P.L.974, NO.89), IS AMENDED TO READ:

§ 1931. PERSONAL AND ORGANIZATION REGISTRATION PLATES.

(A) PERSONAL REGISTRATION PLATES.--THE FEE FOR ISSUANCE OF A

1 PERSONAL REGISTRATION PLATE SHALL BE \$76 WHICH SHALL BE IN
2 ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE. ONLY ONE PAYMENT OF THE
3 ISSUANCE FEE SHALL BE CHARGED FOR EACH PERSONAL REGISTRATION
4 PLATE ISSUED OR REPLACED.

5 (B) ORGANIZATION REGISTRATION PLATES.--THE FEE FOR ISSUANCE
6 OF AN ORGANIZATION REGISTRATION PLATE SHALL BE \$25 WHICH SHALL
7 BE IN ADDITION TO THE ANNUAL REGISTRATION FEE. ONLY ONE PAYMENT
8 OF THE ISSUANCE FEE SHALL BE CHARGED FOR EACH ORGANIZATION
9 REGISTRATION PLATE ISSUED OR REPLACED.

10 ~~Section 5. This act shall take effect in 120 days.~~ <--

11 SECTION 10. THIS ACT SHALL TAKE EFFECT AS FOLLOWS: <--

12 (1) THE AMENDMENT OR ADDITION OF THE FOLLOWING
13 PROVISIONS SHALL TAKE EFFECT IN 120 DAYS:

14 (I) 75 PA.C.S. § 1353.1.

15 (II) 75 PA.C.S. § 1355.1.

16 (III) 75 PA.C.S. § 1357.1.

17 (IV) 75 PA.C.S. § 1369.1.

18 (V) 75 PA.C.S. § 1905(D).

19 (2) THE REMAINDER OF THIS ACT SHALL TAKE EFFECT IN 60
20 DAYS.